
Sr.noRFP Pg No RFP Clause No Existing  Clause Query/Suggestions Bank's Response

1 49 Annexure C - Point 

no 1

Solution should be user 

friendly in terms of GUI, app 

based solution.

Please elaborate on the 

functionalities(e.g.. Monitoring, 

Scheduling, Reporting, etc.) that 

are required as GUI and App. 

The solution should be capable 

of providing the monitoring and 

reporting platform on 

mobile/tablets.

2 49 Annexure C - Point 

no 5

No map-reduce jobs should be 

restarted with Job Tracker 

with the solution.

Can you please elaborate this 

requirement

It means that jobs should be 

intelligent enough to re-run 

automatically from the last 

successfully executed point 

without manually restarting the 

job using JobTracker.

3 50 Annexure C - Point 

no  13

Integrated Dashboards to 

Monitor Cluster and Individual 

VM with capability of drilling 

down to 

Application/Network/Hardwar

e level

1.Are these dashboards currently 

available. If yes, what tool is being 

used to create these dashboards. 

2.How may Reports/ dashboards 

needs to be created

3.How may users will be accessing 

these dashboards

4.What is the frequency of 

generating dashboards(EOD/ real 

time)

1. No, these dashboards are not 

existing in the current setup.

2. The detailed list of reports and 

dashboards will be shared with 

the successful bidder.

3. The number of users will be 

approximately 30(which may 

grow).

4. The frequency of reports will 

be both real-time and EOD and 

on demand(ad-hoc) basis.



4 51 Annexure C - Point 

no  14

User should be able to 

generate report on demand 

even when other 

services/applications like data 

loading, sorting etc. are 

running

1. What type of 

reports(Operational/Analytical) 

are expected to be generated.

2. Type and number users for 

these reports

3. How will these reports be 

consumed

1. The reports will be mostly for 

historic data however, the 

detailed list of reports will be 

shared with the successful bidder 

after discussion.

2. No of users would be around 

30-50(which may grow).

3. These reports will be shared to 

the concerned team for their 

analysis and action. But at a later 

stage, the reports can be 

consumed by a downstream 

application. 

5 54 Annexure C-5.1.1 NoSQL database with a 

document model

Request Bank to elaborate the on 

the use of Document database. 

The proposed solution should 

support a NoSQL database with a 

document model. Use-cases will 

be discussed and decided at a 

later stage.

6 54 Annexure C-5.1.2 NoSQL database with a wide 

column model

Request Bank to elaborate the on 

the use of column database. 

The proposed solution should 

support a NoSQL database with a 

wide-column model. Use-cases 

will be discussed and decided at 

a later stage.

7 55 Annexure C-5.10 Capability to use the same 

cluster for Hadoop and NoSQL 

workloads.

Please provide the details of 

NoSQL workloads. 

NoSQL workloads can be both 

batch/real-time analytics



8 Annexure C-5.14 Provides a Native C API 

support

Are there any existing C programs 

for which the API's are required. 

Please provide the details( 

functionality and number of 

programs to be integrated) about 

the C programs

No, the existing setup doesn't 

use any C programs. But the 

solution should have capability 

to integrate with Native C API.

9 57 Annexure C-7.1 Capability to migrate between 

any two Hadoop distributions

Please provide the details of the 

Hadoop platforms from where the 

data needs to be migrated in the 

new Hadoop system

The data needs to be migrated 

from Pivotal to the new 

proposed hadoop ecosystem.

10 57 Annexure C-7.2 Capability to migrate 

applications, resulting from a 

Hadoop migration, without 

the need to implement code 

changes.

Pls provide applications and 

interface mechanism of 

integrating applications.

The solution should be portable 

i.e, at  a later stage, the data can 

be migrated to any new hadoop 

platform seamlessly.

11 57 Annexure C-9.1 Support for seamless 

integration with existing 

analytics framework

Please provide the below details 

of existing analytics platform

- Analytics tools being used

- what kind of analytical models 

are there

- Does the existing modes needs 

to be migrated to the new Hadoop 

ecosystem

Integration with analytics 

framework may be necessary at 

a later stage. The bidder should 

provide analytics frameworks 

and models as optional line items 

with no pricing information. 



12 57 Annexure C-9.2 Support for predictive and real-

time data driven analytics

Please provide the details of 

predictive and real time analytics 

required

The solution should have the 

capability to provide predictive 

and real-time data-driven 

analytics. Use cases will be 

decided after discussion with the 

successful bidder. The bidder 

should provide analytics 

frameworks and models as 

optional line items with no 

pricing information. 

13 58 Annexure C-10.1 Support for mobile enabled 

dashboards

Are these existing dashboards that 

needs to be migrated?

Please provide the details( 

functionality, number of 

dashboards)

Who will be the users of these 

dashboards. Provide the number 

of users

Mobile enabled dashboards are 

not available in the existing 

setup. 

The number of users will be 30-

50(which may grow).

14 58 Annexure C-10.2 Support for mobile based 

alerts and approvals

Please provide details on the types 

of aletrs  and approvals that needs 

mobile alerts

Alerts would be related to 

hardware/service failure in the 

hadoop ecosystem. 

Approvals for admininstrative 

tasks on the hadoop ecosystem 

should be provided from mobile.



15 62 Annexure E-

General 

Requirements-1.1

New Hadoop platform 

installation and node 

configurations for Primary 

Region (PR), Disaster Recovery 

(DR) and User Acceptance Test 

(UAT) region.

Hadoop environment for 

development environment is not 

required?

What should be the capicity in 

terms of ( percentage of Prod) for 

DR and UAT environment

Tentative numbers are as 

follows:

PR-8

DR-8

UAT-3

However the Bank may decide to 

increase/decrease the numbers.

16 62 Annexure E-

General 

Requirements-1.1

Allocation of 30 node licenses 

for the Hadoop solution. The 

allocation of licenses would be 

on demand basis as and when 

decided by the Bank.

These 30 nodes will be for all the 

environments( PR+DR+UAT)? 

What is the break up of nodes for 

each environment?

What is the size ( Number of cores 

and RAM) required for each node

Yes. The 30 nodes is the total 

number of nodes considering all 

the regions. However the Bank 

will procure the licenses on a 

demand basis(pay as we use).

The hardware specifications for 

the nodes needs to be provided 

by the successful bidder.

17 62 Annexure E 1.1 Overview Would require help in getting the 

exact number of nodes in Dev, 

UAT, Production and DR

PR-8

DR-8

UAT-3

DEV-3

These are tentative counts. 

Bidder should specify the exact 

node sizing based on the data 

volume.

18 62 Annexure E 1.1 Overview What does 30 node licenses mean 

? How is the sizing done is it based 

on some calculation of data size if 

yes then specify the data size

It is a tentative sizing. The Bank 

may decide to grow/shrink as 

and when required.



19 63 Annexure E 3. Technical Requirements Can you suggest the infrastructure 

available with the Bank or the 

bidder should specify its own HW. 

HW requirements will change as 

per data size .

The bidder should specify the 

HW requirements.

20 62 Annexure E / General RequirementsTest environment setup and 

configuration.

Volume of data for Test 

environment Setup?

It will be decided after discussion 

with the successful bidder/OEM.

21 64 Annexure E 

Integration / 

Migration 

Requirements with 

existing systems

The proposed solution should 

integrate with Bank‟s existing 

solutions like PIMS solution 

for User authentication 

purpose, ITSM etc.

Provide more details on existING 

PIMS /ITSM Solution?

PIMS - Privileged Identity 

Managements System is used for 

authenticating privileged access 

to the servers by a mechanism of 

approval/activity tracking.

22 64 Annexure E-4 4.1. The proposed solution 

should be integrated with the 

Bank's existing Hadoop 

Framework and any source 

systems that the Bank may 

decide from time to time.

Please provide the details of the 

existing Hadoop framework ( 

distribution, number of nodes, 

data volumes, et )

Please provide the details source 

system that needs to be 

integrated

Please provide the type of 

integration(real time , batch, API, 

file base) integration required for 

each source systems

As of now the solution needs to 

migrate all the data from the 

existing system. In future the 

bank may decide to integrate 

other source systems. The details 

will be shared with the successful 

bidder as and when necessary.



23 65 Annexure E- 6 MIS Report Generation

6.1 Solution should provide 

reports in the prescribed 

format as decided by the Bank 

for day to day management 

and/or on ad-hoc basis. The 

Bank reserves the right to 

seek additional reports as 

required from time to time at 

no extra cost to the Bank.

How many MIS reports are 

required?

How many users will be accessing 

these reports?

Please provide the indicative list of 

reports

The MIS reports would be from 

the data loaded into the Hadoop 

ecosystem. The reports should 

be customizable i.e, users can 

choose to add/remove fields, 

perform sort or grouping 

operations etc.

The number of users will be 30-

50(which may grow).

24 65 Annexure E- 7 7.1 The proposed solution 

should be implemented within 

the timeframe given by the 

Bank and ensure an uptime of 

99.5% at any given time. A 

partial failure will also be 

treated as complete failure for 

the purpose of calculating 

uptime. Exclusions are only 

planned downtime agreed to 

by the Bank or reasons not 

attributable to the vendor. All 

decisions in this regard will be 

decided by the Bank and

What are the performance SLAs of 

various batch and reports?



25 65 Annexure E- 5 The solution should support 

both hardware and 

application level scalability to 

meet the future requirements 

of the Bank beyond 5 years 

period.

Please provide the year on year 

data volumes to be ingested in the 

Hadoop platform 

YoY growth of users accessing the 

platform

Data volume to be ingested daily 

is ~150GB. YoY growth of data 

~12-15TB.

26 General General For DR solution, what is the 

expected RPO and RTO

RTO-180mins

RPO- Near Zero

What is Total volume of data 

present in existing  Pivotal system 

with 3x replication?

53 TB (53*3=159TB) 

Expected Annual Growth of the 

data?

12-15TB

Expected Volume of data to be 

loaded into No-SQL Databases ?

~60TB

Expected annual growth of No-

SQL Databases?

29 50 Annexure C The solution should run at 

least 3 jobs safely and share 

the Hadoop cluster.

Need to understand SBI's specific 

requirement for this clause?

The cluster should be shared 

between multiple jobs

Is it expected from bidder to share 

recommened hardware like 

Number of Nodes, Network 

Components and Storage etc?

Yes.  

27

28

30 51

49

Annexure C Hardware / Software 

requirements necessary

Annexure C Solution should be scalable to 

meet the future growth of the 

Bank.

54 Annexure C Capability to provide a built-in 

multi model NoSQL database



Share existing pivotal setup details 

Number of Nodes, Cpu,memory, 

storage etc?

Existing setup:

2 Name Nodes

5 data nodes.

System Config:

CPU - 32 Cores (Intel Xeon E5-

2650v2)

RAM-64GB

Storage - 39 TB on each Data 

Node

Can we utilize Current DC -DR 

Bandwidth ? or vendor needs to 

provide separate Link for Disaster 

recovery requirement?

The current DC-DR bandwidth 

can be utilized.

What is Daily volume of data 

getting ingested?  And what is 

volume of Processed output data?

Daily Data Ingestion - 150 GB

Data is loaded to the Pivotal 

HAWQ DB.

Expected RTO and RPO Details? RTO-180mins

RPO- Near Zero

32 53 Annexure C Capability to provide 

cryptographically secure 

authentication and encryption

Existing authentication 

Mechanism (AD or LDAP)?

Default Linux authentication

30

31

51 Annexure C Hardware / Software 

requirements necessary

51 Annexure C Capability to provide low 

latency failover to a DR site



33 66 Annexure E / 

Facility 

Management 

Services & Onsite 

support

The services will include 

Administration, Configuration, 

Maintenance, Performance 

Tuning, Monitoring, 

Troubleshooting and fixing 

issues with Hardware Infra / 

Operating Environments 

including coordination with 

OEMs for fixing Hardware 

level issues

Please provide the details of 

support window

34 46 Annexure B -pt 5 Client references and contact 

details (email/ landline/ 

mobile) of customers for 

whom the Bidder has 

executed similar projects. 

(Start and End Date of the 

Project to be mentioned) in 

the past (At least 3 client 

references are required)

"Similar Projects" - does this mean 

projects where same proposed 

solution has been implemented? 

Or any other  Hadoop framework?

We request the bank to change 

the clause to Client references of 

customers for whom the 

Bidder/OEM has executed similar 

projects.

Ammended through 

Corrigendum

35 47 Annexure B -pt 14 References of the 

implementation in India 

should be provided for a 

similar deployment.

"Similar deployment" - does this 

mean projects where proposed 

hadoop framework  has been 

implemented? Or any other  

Hadoop framework?

References can be 

implementations done by 

Bidder/OEM. PLease confirm.

Ammended through 

Corrigendum



36 59 Technical Evaluation Matrix-- pt1Relevant Experience of the 

applicant---Number of sites in 

which the framework 

successfully implemented

We request the bank to change 

the parameter  to Relevant 

experience of the applicant/OEM --

-Number of sites in which the 

framework successfully 

implemented

Ammended through 

Corrigendum

37 59 Technical Evaluation MatrixBenchmark Certifications We understand from the OEM/'s 

that no golbal body provides these  

certifications. Kindly confirm if the 

internal benchmark certifications 

will suffice or does the bank have 

any other expectation.

The OEM needs to submit the 

results 

of the benchmarking tests(with 

supporting/published 

documents) mentioned in the 

RFP.

38 80 Charges & 

Payment terms

No. Milestone Payment %age

1

On delivery of licenses and 

installation

40%

2

Implementation with 

migration of 6 months of data

20%

3

Migration of last 3 years of 

data

30%

2

On completion total data 

migration or against Bank 

Guarantee

10% Total 100

100% payment on delivery No Change

39 80 AMC Quarterly in arrears Yearly in advance No Change



40 General All terms and conditions will be as 

per MSA signed between TCS - SBI

1 General Query • What is the size of the Data in 

existing pivotal Hadoop?

53 TB (53*3=159TB) considering 

3 way replication 

2 General Query • What is the format of the 

existing Data?

HDFS Key Value pair

3 General Query • Is there any mechanism the data 

feeding into Pivotal and that 

needs to be addressed?

Yes, the existing mechanism is a 

script based utility. Finally data is 

loaded into the HAWQ DB using 

GPFDIST utility.

4 General Query • What is the target platform? And 

Preferences?

Bidder has to decide, there is no 

preference from the Bank's side.

5 General Query • How the data is distributed in 

the Pivotal Platform?

Data is distributed by 

Pivotal(internal mechanism) 

using 3 way replication.



6 Page 46,Point 

5

Client  references  

and  contact

details (email/ 

landline/ mobile)

of customers for 

whom the

Bidder has 

executed similar

projects.

(Start  and  End  

Date  of  the

Project to be 

mentioned)  in the

past (At least 3 

client

references are 

required)

We request on relaxation of the 

clause, vendor can provide self 

certifications as a proof of 

executed projects  

No Change

1 General 

Questions

How many data sources are there 

and their size?

As of now there is a single data 

source. Size is 120-150 GB on a 

daily basis.

2 General 

Questions

What is the frequency of the 

incremental loads and their size? 

How many data sources are in 

incremental nature?

Frequency is daily. Data is loaded 

on a daily basis. It is a full 

load(not incremental).

3 General 

Questions

What are all the data format of 

the data sources? Whether any 

data source are loaded from 

RDBMS DB or streaming data?

Data is loaded from Oracle DB.



4 General 

Questions

Whether the existing system uses 

data from Hadoop/hdfs for 

storage purpose? 

Yes.

5 General 

Questions

Whether the existing system has 

any map/reduce jobs that needs 

to be migrated?

No.

6 General 

Questions

The new system requires NoSQL 

databases (both document and 

wide column DB). Please confirm

Yes. The new platform should 

support both a wide-column and 

document based DB.

7 General 

Questions

Should the data in the NOSQL DB 

stored in Hadoop/HDFS itself or it 

can be stored in outside of HDFS 

for instance in Cassandra? Please 

clarify

The bidder should decide this 

based on industry approved best-

practices and to provide the best 

performance for the use-case 

specified in the RFP.

8 General 

Questions

Does the new system requires a 

data warehousing tool for ad hoc 

queries such as Hive for analytics?

The bidder should decide 

whether to use a DWH 

tool/analytics framework to 

justify the use-case provided.

9 General 

Questions

Any of the DB requires ACID 

properties?

Not as of now. The DB is 

primarily OLAP with no updates.

10 General 

Questions

Any reports/data visualizations 

required to be developed?

The reports that are currently 

generated from front-end has to 

be integrated/re-built using the 

new platform.

11 General 

Questions

How many reports are there in the 

existing system and number of 

filters in it? 

As of now there are 8 

filters(which may grow). 



12 General 

Questions

We assume that cloud 

implementation is not required as 

the data needs to be stored at 

physical client location. Please 

confirm.

The solution should be cloud 

enabled and may be deployed in 

private cloud.

13 General 

Questions

The data would be replicated by 

the default value three. Please 

confirm if any changes required in 

this.

Vendor to decide the replication 

factor to provide seamless 

operations.

14 General 

Questions

What is the total volume of data 

to be migrated?

50-60 TB(which may grow)

15 General 

Questions

Does the scope include 

configuration of data ingestion 

flows from source data systems? If 

yes, please list the data systems, 

their underlying database/data 

APIs to connect to for ingestion, 

nature of data 

(structured/unstructured, 

text/audio/video etc.), velocity of 

source data (batch/streamining-

realtime)

Yes the scoope includes data 

ingestion mechanism. Data is 

loaded from Oracle 

DB(structured data). Data is 

loaded in batch processing.

16 General 

Questions

Is there a reporting solution 

already in place with which the 

proposed solution needs to 

integrate?

Yes, but it needs to 

revamped/redesigned in the new 

platform.

17 General 

Questions

Does the scope include designing 

the reports?

Yes.



18 Annexure C

What does the bank anticipate 

future growth to be like? 

Quantification in terms of Volume 

of Data, Analytics Requirement, 

Streaming Data etc.

Post merger volume of data 

would be around 150-160 GB on 

a daily basis.

19 Annexure C

4) [Functional 

Requirements

Are there any performance 

bottlenecks being experienced by 

the bank with existing system? If 

yes, please describe where and 

how these are being observed.

Query performance and data 

loading process is slow.

20 Annexure C

5.14) [NOSQL]

 What will the native C API be used 

for?

As of now there are no C APIs in 

the existing system. But the 

solution should support native C 

API considering the future 

enhancements as desired by the 

Bank.

21 Annexure C 

8.1) [Open 

Platform 

Support]

Please list specific APIs the 

support is needed for

NA

22

Annexure C 

9.1) [Analytics]

Please describe your currently 

used Analytics Framework. Are 

you open to migrate to an equally 

capable or more advanced 

Analytics Framework?

Bidder to provide a list of 

analytics frameworks that can be 

integrated with the solution.



23 General 

Questions

There is one requirement that “No 

map-reduce jobs should be 

restarted with Job Tracker with 

the solution”, could you please 

elaborate this more. 

It means that jobs should be 

intelligent enough to re-run 

automatically from the last 

successfully executed point 

without manually restarting the 

job using JobTracker.

24 General 

Questions

The solution should synchronize 

data across clusters with efficient 

Mirroring. Does that mean real 

time data mirroring is expected? 

What is the expected RPO and 

RTO requirement for DR cluster?

Real-time mirroring is preferred.

25 General 

Questions

 NO of nodes mentioned in the 

RFP is 30. Does it include the DC 

and DR cluster both or they are 

only for DC and vendor needs to 

include separate DR nodes.

Yes it includes DC, DR, UAT and 

DEV.

26 General 

Questions

How much data volume are we 

looking in Pivotal for migration, 

what is the YOY growth expected, 

how much is the daily data 

ingestion volume.

Daily data ingestion is around 

120-150 GB(uncompressed). YoY 

growth currently is around 

12TB(which can grow). All of the 

data lying in Pivotal needs to be 

migrated(size ~60TB).

27 General 

Questions

What all process run around 

Pivotal? Do we have a current 

state architecture?

Only the reporting framework 

runs around Pivotal. But the Bank 

is willing to add new use-cases to 

the solution.



28 General 

Questions

 What ETL is used for data 

integration in Pivotal. How many 

ETL jobs are there.

It is a basic script based data 

load. No ETL tool is used 

currently.

29 General 

Questions

 The Delivery schedule/ Timeline 

for Software Solution is 

mentioned as 3 months from date 

of issuance of purchase order.  

Presume this means the end to 

end migration solution from 

Pivotal to Hadoop including 

Dev/Uat and Go live

Yes.

30 General 

Questions

How the ongoing/incremental 

data managed in Pivotal and will it 

be required to be managed after 

Hadoop migration?

Yes.

1 6 / 90 3 (iv) “The Contract” means the 

agreement entered into 

between the Bank and the 

Vendor, as recorded in the 

Contract Form signed by the 

parties, including all 

attachments and appendices 

thereto and all documents 

incorporated by reference 

therein.

Bidder requests that for the 

purpose of this clause, contract 

shall not include the Tender 

document as it is only an initial 

document, upon which further 

discussions and changes take 

place until the time of execution 

of the Contract.

Hence the Contract should be 

limited to the Agreement signed, 

the Statement of Work and 

associated Annexures.

No Change



2 9 / 90 8 (v) The information provided by 

the bidders in response to this 

RFP will become the property 

of the Bank and will not be 

returned. Incomplete 

information in bid document 

may lead to non-consideration 

of the proposal.

Bidder submits that the 

documents will contain the IP of 

the Bidder and SBI will not aquire 

the ownership of title to these 

documents. Only a license to use 

these documents shall be 

provided.

No Change

3 9 / 90 9 (viii) ( if the successful Bidder fails to 

sign the contract or furnish 

Performance Bank Guarantee, 

within the specified time 

period in the RFP/Purchase 

Order.

Bidder seeks to clarify that any 

delays associated with the process 

of negotiations/discussion 

regarding the mutual agreement 

on the T&C's of the MSA shall not 

be accounted towards the 

specified period provided to sign 

the contract.

No Change

4 10 / 90 10 (c ) (iv) Confirming that they agree 

with all the terms and 

conditions mentioned in the 

RFP.

Please clarify if the Bidder may 

submit alternate 

language/assumption on certain 

RFP terms and conditions. 

No Change



5 13 / 90 14 …All the submissions, 

including any accompanying 

documents, will become 

property of the Bank. The 

bidders shall be deemed to 

license, and grant all rights to 

the Bank, to reproduce the 

whole or any portion of their 

product for the purpose of 

evaluation, to disclose the 

contents of submission to 

other bidders and to disclose 

and/ or use the contents of 

submission as the basis for 

RFP process.

Bidder submits that the 

documents will contain the IP of 

the Bidder and SBI will not aquire 

the ownership of title to these 

documents. Only a license to use 

these documents shall be 

provided.

No Change

6 18 / 90 19 (ix) Failure of the successful 

Bidder to comply with the 

requirements/terms and 

conditions of this RFP shall 

constitute sufficient grounds 

for the annulment of the 

award and forfeiture of the 

EMD and/or invocation of 

PBG.

Bidder submits that PBG may be 

invoked only in case of material 

breach of contract post a cure 

period of 60 days.

No Change



7 18 / 90 20 (i) No alterations, amendments, 

omissions, additions, 

suspensions or variations of 

the work (hereinafter referred 

to as variation) under the 

contract shall be made by the 

successful bidder except as 

directed in writing by the 

Bank…..

…

Any agreed difference in cost 

occasioned by such variation 

shall be added to or deducted 

from the contract price as the 

case may be.

Bidder submits that a Notice 

period of 30 days is to be provided 

prior to the effective date of 

suspension.

No Change



8 20 / 90 24 (i) The PBG has to be issued by a 

Scheduled Commercial Bank 

other than SBI and needs to 

be submitted within the 

specified time of receipt of 

formal communication from 

the Bank about their bid 

finally selected. Purchase 

Order will be released only 

after receipt of the 

Performance Bank Guarantee.

Bidder submits that the 

performance bank guarantee is 

processed only after execution of 

the governing contract. Hence we 

propose modification of this 

clause as follows: "These 

guarantees shall be submitted 

within 21 (twenty one) days of 

execution of contract." "...needs 

to be submitted within the 

specified time of receipt of formal 

communication from the Bank 

about their bid finally selected  21 

(twenty one) days of execution of 

contract" 

Bidder submits that there should 

be a provision for reasonable cure 

period prior to invoking 

Performance Security. 

No Change



9 26 / 90 33 Right to Audit Bidder can accommodate Audit 

requirements subject to be 

confined to business records 

relating to the Bidder/Bank 

contract. Additionally, Bidder 

requests and submits that:

(a) auditors must not be Bidders 

competitors;

(b) the scope and purpose of such 

audits must be well defined (e.g., 

charges, service level 

performance, security and other 

controls, etc.).  

(c) scope must exclude Bidder’s 

internal operations and costs, as 

well as other customers’ data and 

services;

(d) audit procedures must comply 

with Bidder’s reasonable 

requirements (e.g., concerning 

prior notice, security, 

confidentiality) and avoid any 

disruption of normal operations;

(e) Bidder under such Audits will 

not disclose its internal or external 

audits, summaries or reports.

(f) The Auditing party shall sign an 

approprite non-disclosure 

No Change

10 27 / 90 34 Right to Subcontract Bidder requests the bank to allow 

subcontracting and make the 

bidder responsible for the the 

overall SLA

No Change



11 28 / 90 36 (iii) - NEW 

CLAUSE

Limitation of Liability Bidder proposes the clause to be 

modified as below: 

"Both parties agree that neither 

party shall be liable for any 

indirect, remote, consequential 

loss or damages including but not 

limited to loss of profit, loss of 

anticipated earning, loss of data, 

revenues, goodwill, or business 

value whether or not that party 

was aware or should have been 

aware of the possibility of such 

costs, expenses or damages."

No Change



12 30 / 90 41 (ii) The Vendor shall, at its own 

expenses without any 

limitation, defend and 

indemnify the Bank against all 

third party claims or 

infringements of Intellectual 

Property Rightsincluding 

patent, trademark, copyright, 

trade secret or industrial 

design rights arising from use 

of the products or any part 

thereof in India or abroad. In 

case of violation/ 

infringement of patent/ 

trademark/ copyright/ trade 

secrete or industrial design, 

the supplier shall after due 

inspection and testing get the 

solution redesigned for the 

Bank,at no extra cost.

No Change



13 31 / 90 41 (v) The Vendor shall grant the 

Bank a fully paid-up, 

irrevocable, non-exclusive, 

perpetual licensethroughout 

the territory of India or 

abroad to access, replicate 

and use software provided by 

the Vendor, including all 

inventions, designs and marks 

embodied therein perpetually. 

The source code / object code 

/ executable code and 

compilation procedures of the 

software solution should be 

provided to the Bank after 

successful UAT or escrow 

arrangement should be put in 

place. All necessary 

documentation in this behalf 

should be made available to 

the Bank. In case of Escrow 

arrangement, complete 

details and the location and 

the terms and conditions 

applicable for escrow must be 

specified.Any update or 

upgrade to source code 

should be informed and 

Bidder requests deletion of this 

clause as the source code is a an IP 

and cannot be shared

No Change



14 35 / 90 45 (i) The Bank, without prejudice 

to any other remedy for 

breach of Contract, by a 

written notice of not less than 

30 (thirty) days sent to the 

Vendor, may terminate the 

Contract in whole or in part:

a. If the Vendor fails to deliver 

any or all of the Software 

Solution and Services within 

the period(s) specified in the 

Contract, or within any 

extension thereof granted by 

the Bank; or

b. If the vendor fails to 

perform any other 

obligation(s) under the 

contract; or

c. Laxity in adherence to 

standards laid down by the 

Bank; or

d. Discrepancies/deviations in 

the agreed processes and/or 

Software Solution; or

e. Violations of terms and 

conditions stipulated in this 

RFP.

Bidder requests a cure period of 

30 days before termination.

No Change



15 35 / 90 45 (ii) In the event the Bank 

terminates the Contract in 

whole or in part for the 

breaches attributable to the 

Vendor, the Bank may 

procure, upon such terms and 

in such manner as it deems 

appropriate, Software 

Solution and Services similar 

to those undelivered, and the 

Vendor shall be liable to the 

Bank for any increase in cost 

for such similar Software 

Solutionand/or Services. 

However, the Vendor shall 

continue performance of the 

Contract to the extent not 

terminated.

Bidder submits that Bidder's 

liability under this clause shall be 

limited to a maximum of 10% of 

the value payable to the Bidder of 

the undelivered portion which has 

to be procured from an alternate 

source.

It is further submitted that entire 

contract is not to be terminated in 

cases where specific portions 

alone need to be procured from 

third parties.

A notice period of 30 days shall be 

provided to the Vendor in the 

event of decision being made to 

exercise rights under this clause.

No Change



16 35 & 36 /83/ 

90

45 (ii) Transition Requirement: 

In the event of failure of the 

Vendor to render the Services 

or in the event of termination 

of agreement or expiry of 

term or otherwise, without 

prejudice to any other right, 

the Bank at its sole discretion 

may make alternate 

arrangement for getting the 

Services contracted with 

another vendor. In such case, 

the Bank shall give prior 

notice to the existing Vendor. 

The existing Vendor shall 

continue to provide services 

as per the terms of contract 

until a „New Vendor‟ 

completely takes over the 

work. During the transition 

phase, the existing Vendor 

shall render all reasonable 

assistance to the new Vendor 

within such period prescribed 

by the Bank, at no extra cost 

to the Bank, for ensuring 

smooth switch over and 

continuity of services. If 

Bidder requests the bank to cap 

this penalty to an overall cap of 

15% of TCV mentioned in clause 

no n) of the RFP

No Change



17 35 45. Termination 

for Default

ii. In the event the Bank 

terminates the Contract in 

whole or in part for the 

breaches attributable to the 

Vendor, the Bank may 

procure, upon such terms and 

in such manner as it deems 

appropriate, Software 

Solution and Services similar 

to those undelivered, and the 

Vendor shall be liable to the 

Bank for any increase in cost 

for such similar Software 

Solutionand/or Services. 

However, the Vendor shall 

continue performance of the 

Contract to the extent not 

terminated.

Bidder proposes the below 

changes

ii. In the event the Bank 

terminates the Contract in whole 

or in part for the breaches 

attributable to the Vendor, the 

Bank may procure, upon such 

terms and in such manner as it 

deems appropriate, Software 

Solution and Services similar to 

those undelivered, and the Vendor 

shall be liable to the Bank for any 

increase in cost subjected to 

maximum of 10% of defective 

products value for such similar 

Software Solutionand/or Services. 

However, the Vendor shall 

continue performance of the 

Contract to the extent not 

terminated.

No Change



18 38 52. Taxes and 

Duties:

Prices payable to the Vendor 

as stated in the Contract shall 

be firm and not subject to 

adjustment during 

performance of the Contract, 

irrespective of reasons 

whatsoever, including 

exchange rate fluctuations, 

any upward revision in 

Custom duty. The Bidder will 

pass on to the Bank, all fiscal 

benefits arising out of 

reductions, if any, in 

Government levies viz. custom 

duty or the benefit of 

discounts if any announced in 

respect of the cost of the 

items for which orders have 

been placed during that 

period.

Bidder requests that any change in 

the statutory taxes or the tax 

structures, including customs 

duty, should be borne by 

Customer.

No Change

19 41 Part II - Schedule 

of events

18 Transition Penalty(Refer 

Part-1, point No 47 sub point 

no (vi).

Bidder is not able to identify - Part-

1, point no. 47 sub point no. (vi) in 

the RFP

No Change

20 78 Annexure-J 

Penalties

The penalty may be recovered 

from project cost/AMC 

cost/BG as per discretion of 

the Bank subject to maximum 

of 15%.

Bidder request to make the below 

changes

The penalty may be recovered 

from project cost/AMC cost/BG as 

per discretion of the Bank subject 

to maximum of 15%. 10% of the 

quarterly charges

No Change



21 80 Annexure K - 

Service level 

agreement

e) Charges & Payment terms

1. On delivery of licenses and 

installation - 40%

2. Implementation with 

migration of 6 months of data - 

20%

3. Migration of last 3 years of 

data - 30%

2. On completion total data 

migration or against Bank 

Guarantee -10%

Bidder request to make the below 

changes

e) Charges & Payment terms

1. On delivery of licenses and 

installation - 40% 70%

2. Implementation with migration 

of 6 months of data - 20% 10%

3. Migration of last 3 years of data 

- 30% 10%

2. 4.  On completion total data 

migration or against Bank 

Guarantee - 10%

No Change

22 80 Annexure K - 

Service level 

agreement

f) Project Duration

Implementation of the 

solution as per the scope of 

the RFP - 

1% per of the total project 

Cost for a delay of 1week or 

part thereof and subject to 

maximum of 5%

Bidder understands the LD stated 

in Part II - Schedule of events 

point 17 and in Annexure K sub 

section (e) for delay in initiation of 

the work will also be subjected to 

the overall cap of 5% of the 

implementation value mentioned 

in this section.

No Change



23 82 Annexure K - 

Service level 

agreement

m) Project Support & Annual 

Maintenance Contract

The support should be for the 

period of contract. The 

warranty period for the 

solution starts after successful 

user acceptance test and sign 

off by the Bank. The warranty 

will be for 1 year followed 

with an AMC for 4 years. In 

case, vendor is not able to 

stabilize the solution within 6 

months of acceptance, the 

warranty period will extended 

by another one year.

Bidder request to limit the 

contract term to implementation 

plus one year warranty and 4 

years AMC. In case of issue in 

stablization of solution will attract 

penalty as stated in previous 

clauses of the RFP.

No Change

24 82 Annexure K - 

Service level 

agreement

n) Penalty The penalty may be 

recovered from project 

cost/AMC cost/BG as per 

discretion of the Bank subject 

to maximum of 15%.

Bidder proposes to delete this 

section as this has already 

mentioned in Annexure-J Penalties 

Page 78

No Change


